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SEN. LEAHY: And normally we would've started at 10, but Senator Grassley and I were both at the Supreme 
Court fur the -- fur the Judicial Confurence. And so we appreciate everybody's willingness to start at 10:15. 
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Tbi<; i'l an important hearing on FOIA, or the Freedom ofInfurmation Act. When Congress enacted FOIA rmre 
than 40 years ago, the watershed law ushered in a new and Ullprecedented era of transparency in government. 
And fuur decades later, FOIA continues to give citizens access to the inner workings of their government and to 
guarantee the right to know fur all Americans. 

The right to know i'l a cornerstone of our dermcracy. Without it, citizens are kept in the dark about key policy 
deci'lions that directly afrect their lives. In the digital age, FOIA retmins an indi'lpensable tool in protecting the 
people's right to know. And as AIrericans from every corner of our nation commemorate SlIDShine Week, they 
have good reason to cheer. 

I'm pleased that one of President Obama's first official acts when he took office was he i'lsued a hi'ltoric new 
directive to strengthen FOIA. Just yesterday, the Department ofJustice launched a new FOIA.gov website. It 
compiles all the department's FOIA data in one online location 

The Congress has made good progress in strengthening FOIA. Last year, the Senate unanimously passed the 
Faster FOIA Act. That was a bill that Senator Comyn of Texas and I introduced to establi'lh a biparti'lan 
commission to study FOIA to make recoIIlllllndations to Congress on ways to fin1her improve FOIA. And we 
will reintroduce thi'l bill later thi'l week. 

Both Senator -- the reason Senator Comyn and I have joined together fur years now on strengthening FOrA, we 
go under the assumption that no matter whether you have a Dermcratic or a Republican admini'ltration, whoever i'l 
there is going to be glad to talk about the things that go right -- not quite so eager to talk about things that might not 
have gone right. And it helps everybody -- no matter whether it's a Republican or a Dermcratic admini'ltration to 
know that the people being represented have a chance to find out what's happening. 

And there's a reason to cheer the recent unanimous decision by the Suprem: Court in the Federal CoI1llIlUllications 
Commission v. AT&T, concluding that corporations do not have a right of personal privacy under the Freedom of 
Infurmation Act. And that, again, makes our government rmre open and accountable to the American people. 

GovernIrent i'l still not as open and as accessible as I'd like to see it, and many ofus would. ImpleIren1ation of 
FOIA continues to be hampered by the increasing use of exemptions, especially under Section B3 ofFOIA. Last 
year, Senators Grassleyand Comyn and I worked together on a biparti'lan basi'l to repeal an overly broad FOIA 
exemption in the hi'ltoric Wall Street refunn bill. 

But it's also essential AIrerican people have a FOIA law that is not only strengthened by refunn, but properly 
enfurced. A report released yesterday by the National Security Archive fuund that while there's been som: 
progress in implementing the president's FOIA refunns, only about half of the federal agencies surveyed have 
taken steps to update their FOIA guidance and -- (inaudible) -- and FOIA resources. And FOIA delays continue 
to be a problem Six-year-old delays are Jar too nruch. 

So I'm pleased we have representatives from the Department of Justice and the Office of Government Infurmation 
Services, and I will continue to work with Senator Comyn, Senator Grassley and others because thi'l is soIrething 
we should an join on It's inllortant fur the country. 

Senator Grassley. 
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SENATOR CHUCK GRASSLEY (R-IA): This is a very important hearing and thank you fur it, and particularly 
coming during this week that's Sunshine Week -- observed annua1ly -- seemingly coinciding with J8.I1leS Madison's 
birthday, fuurxling futher of our checks and balances system of govermnent. Open govermnent and transparency 
are more thanjust pleasant-sourxling words. They're essential to maintain our democratic furm of government. 

FOIA is based on the belief that citizens have a right to know what their government is doing and that the burden is 
on the govermnent to prove otherwise. It requires that our governrrent operate on the presumption of disclosure. 
So it's important to talk about the Freedom ofInfurmation Act and the need fur American citizens to be able to 
easily obtain infurmation from their government. 

Transparency is not adequate, even in a Republican administration, as fur as I'm concerned. Ahhough it's Sunshine 
Week, I'm disheartened at continuing the practices of previous presidents -- Republican or Democrat -- that we 
don't have the openness that we should. And contrary to President Obama's hopeful pronouncements when he 
took office more than two years ago, the sun still isn't shining on the executive branch. 

Given my experiences in trying to pry infurmation out of the executive branch and based on investigations by the 
media, I'm disappointed that President Obama's statements about transparency are not being put into practice. 
Federal agencies under the control ofhi<l political appointees have been more aggressive than ever in withholding 
infurmation There's a real disconnect between the president's words and the actions ofhi<l political appointees. 

On hi<l first full day in office, President Obama issued memorandum on FOIA to heads of all executive agencies, 
quote, ''The government should not keep infurmation confidential merely because public officials might be 
embarrassed by disclosure, because errors and fuilures might be revealed or because of speculative and abstract 
rears," end of quote. But further quoting his instruction to executive agencies, "adopt a presumption in fuvor of 
disclosure." And that's very important to remember those words: "Adopt a presumption in fuvor of disclosure in 
order to renew their cOlillnitlnent to the principles embodied in FOIA and to usher a new era of open goVeImnent. 

" 

Unfurtunately, based upon his administration's actions, this appears at the eyes of the president's political 
appointees, his hopeful words about open government and transparency are mere words. It's not just a matter of 
disappointment in the administration's perfurmance in complying with requests fur infurmation and it's not even 
about bureaucratic ''business as usual" It's more and fur worse. 

Perhaps the most dramatic and troubling departure from the president's vow to usher a new era of open 
goVeImnent are revealed in e-mails from the Department of Homeland Security obtained by Associated Press July, 
last year. A report by Ted Bridis of AP uncovered that fur at least a year Homeland Security was diverting 
requests fur records to senior political advisors who delayed the release of records they considered politically 
sensitive. The review often delayed the release of infurmation fur weeks beyond the usual wait. 

Specifically, in July, the Department of Homeland Security introduced a directive requiring a wide range of 
infurmation to be vetted by political appointees no matter who requested it. Career employees were ordered to 
provide Secretary Napolitano political staffwith infurmation about the people who asked fur records, such as 
where they lived, whether they were private citizens or reporters, and about the organizations they worked fur. If a 
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member of Congress sought such documents, employees were told to specifY Detmcrat or Republican. 

The Homeland Security directive laid out an expansive view of the sort of documents that required political vetting. 
Anything that touched on controversial or a sensitive subject, that could attract media attention, or that deah with 
meetings involving prominent business and elected leaders had to go to political appointees. I was very di<iturbed 
by the Association (sic) Press Report which came out July 21 st last year. 

Accordingly, in August, Representative Issa and I wrote the inspectors general-- the inspectors general of29 
agencies and asked them to review whether their agencies were taking steps to limit responses to Freedom of 
Infunmtion Act requests from lawrmkers, journalists, activist groups and watchdog organizations. The deadline 
fur responding to my letter passed about five mmths ago. To date, only 11 of the 29 agencies have responded. 
The lack of a response from so many agencies send di<iturbing messages. The leadership of the rederal agencies 
don't seem to consider the political screening of requests under the Freedom oflnfunmtion Act to be a matter 
worthy of their attention 

My concem about the lack of responses to my letter was wen fuunded. It now appears that the Deparbnent of 
Justice may have also politicized compliance with the Freedom oflnfunmtion Act. February the 10th, 2011, blog 
-- rve got three more pages and rm laying out a case here. If you don't want me to, rn put it in the record. 

SEN. LEAHY: No, go ahead -- (inaudible). 

SEN. GRASSLEY: On February the 10th, 2011, blogposting, Christian Adams, a furmer attorney in the Voting 
Section of Civil Rights Division at the Justice Department, di<icussed this di<iturbing development in detail. 
Specifically, Adams's review of Voting Section's logs fur Freedom oflnfunmtion Act requests reveal that requests 
from liberals or politically connected civil rights groups are often given the same-day or expedited turnaround. By 
contrast, requests from conservatives or Republicans filce long delays if they are fu1fi11ed at all. 

Adams reported that as of August 2010, the logs show a pattem of political screening and politicalizing 
compliance. Overan, the data in the logs obtained by Adams reveal priorities of the Civil Rights Division, 
transparency fur insiders and friends, stonewaRing fur critics, political appointees and Republicans. 

So there is a di<iturbing contradiction between President Obama's words and the actions ofhis political appointees. 
When the agencies rm reviewing get derensive and refuse to respond to my request, it makes me wonder what 
they're trying to hide. 

Throughout my career, I have actively conducted oversight of executive branch regardless of who controls 
Congress or who controls the White House. It's our constitutional duty. It's about basic govermnent -- good 
government -- and accountability, not party politics or ideology. Open government is not a Republican or 
Democrat issue. It has to be -- and our chairman has highlighted that -- a bipartisan approach. Our difIilrences on 
policy issues and the workings of government must be debated befure our citfz.ens in open 

I know you -- I know that you know this, Mr. Chairman. I know how hard you've worked with Senator Cornyn 
on the Open Government Act of2007 which amended FOIA. Mr. Chairman, I hope that you and I are disturbed 
-- or that you're as disturbed as I am by these reports and by the attorney general's approach to them I hope that 
you will work with me to investigate these allegations. I also hope that more in the media will investigate di<iturbing 
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I'm disappointed that there hasn't been more media coverage of the Associated Press on covering the political 
screening of the Freedom oflnfurmation Act requests by the Department of Homeland Security and Christian 
Adams's article about similar conduct OOJ. I'm also disappointed that there has not been more coverage of 
Representative Issa's effiJrts to investigate Homeland Security's political screening of infurmation requests. 

This conduct isn't just political decision making, it's a politically motivated withholding of infurmation about the very 
conduct of our government from our citizens. In particular, it's the withholding ofinfurmation about Obama's 
administration's controversial policies and about its mistakes. We cannot ignore or minimize this type of conduct. 
It's our job in Congress to help ensure that agencies are more transparent and responsive to goverillrellt we 
represent. 

I view this hearing as the chance to have the mcts come out and as the chance to examine some of the disturbing 
practices which have been reported on In other words, as I smn it up, except fur national security and intelligence 
infurmation -- and that's about 1 percent of total federal govermrent's business -- 99 percent of what the 
government does is the public's business and it ought to be public. Thank you very rmch. 

SEN. LEAHY: Well, I agree with the senator, when requests are made, we ought to get answers. I think of the 
thousands of requests made during the Bush administration have yet to be answered -- never were answered 
there. 

SEN. GRASSLEY: For this senator too. 

SEN. LEAHY: Yeah and fur the hundreds of thousands of e-mail.lthattheystillsaytheycan.tfind from that tine. 
So I would not want to suggest that the blane just" on one -- on one side. We've bad those requests during-­
(inaudible) -- we have the Lyme disease one of -- they're still trying to find requests during the last admini<itration, 
but what I want to know is how we make it work best. And Melanie Pustay -- did I pronounce that correctly? 
Thank you 

MELANIE PUSTAY: Pustay, yes. 

SEN. LEAHY: -- is the director of the Office oflnfurmation Policy at the Department ofJustice. Has a statutory 
responsibility fur directing the agency in compliance with the Freedom oflnfurmation Act. Befure becoming the 
office's director, she served fur 8 years as the deputy director. She has extensive experience in FOIA litigation, 
received the Attorney Generars Distinguished Service Award fur her role in providing legal advice, guidance and 
assistance on records diiclosure -- (inaudible). Earned her law degree from Arrerican University Washington 
College of Law, and she was on the law review there. 

We will put your whole statement in the record of course. But please, in the tine -- (inaudible) -- go ahead and ten 
us whatever you'd like. 

MS. PUSTAY: Thank you Good morning, Chairman Leahy and Ranking Member Grassley and members of the 
committee. I'm pleased to be here this morning to address the subject of the Freedom oflnfurmation Act and the 
effiJrts of the Department ofJustice to ensure that President Obarna's memorandmn on the FOIA, as wen as 
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Attorney General Holder's FOIA guidelines, are indeed fu1ly implemented across the government. 

As the lead federal agency responsible fur proper implementation of the FOIA, we at the Department ofJustice 
are strongly committed to encouraging compliance with the act by all agencies and to promoting open govermnent. 

As you know, the attorney general issued his new FOIA guidelines during Sunshine Week two years ago. The 
attorney general caned on agency chiefFOIA officers to review their agency's FOIA administration each year and 
then to report to the Department of Justice on the steps they've taken to achieve improved transparency. These 
reports show that agencies have made real progress in applying the presumption of openness and improving the 
efficiency of their FOIA processes, reducing their backlogs, expanding their use ofteclmology, and making more 
infurmation available proactively. 

Now, while there is always work that remains to be done, fur the second year in a row agencies have shown that 
they're improving FOIA compliance and increasing transparency. For example, across the govennnent there was 
an overall reduction in the FOIA backlog fur the second year in a row. There was also an increase in the mnnber 
of requests where records were released in full. And rm particularly proud to report that the Department of Justice 
fur the second straight year in a row increased the mnnber of responses where records were released in full and 
were released in part. 

In my office -- the Office ofInfurmation Policy -- we've provided extensive govermnent-wide training on the new 
guidelines to agencies, and we've issued written guidelines to assist agencies. We've also reached out to the public 
and the requester comnnmity. We will be holding our first- ever FOIA requester/agency town han meeting, which 
will bring together FOIA personnel and frequent FOIA requesters. 

Yesterday, the first day of Sunshine Week, the attorney general approved new updated FOIA regulations fur the 
department. These regulations will serve as a model fur all agencies to use in similarly updating their own FO IA 
regulations. 

And then most significantly, yesterday, we launched our newest transparency initiative, which is our website called 
FOIA.gov. Now, corrbining the department's leadership and policy roles in the FOIA, the FOIA.gov website 
shines a light on the operation of the FO IA itsel£ The website has two distinct elements; first, it serves as a visual 
report card of agency compliance with the FOIA. All the detailed statistics that are contained in agency amrual 
FOIA reports are displayed graphically, and the website will be able to be searched and sorted and comparisons 
made between agencies and over time. 

We'nalso be reporting key measurements of agency compliance and we're -- it's our hope that FOIA.gov will help 
create an incentive fur agencies to improve their FO IA perfurmance. The site will also provide a link to each 
agency's FOIA website, which will allow the public to readily locate records that are already posted on agency 
websites. 

Now, in addition, the FOIA.gov website will serve a second and equally important fimction. It will be a place 
where the public can be educated about how the FOIA process works, where to make requests and what to 
expect through the FOIA process. Explanatory videos are embedded into the site. There's a section addressing 
frequently asked questions. There's a glossary ofFOIA terms. A weahh of contact infurmation is given fur each 
agency. Significant FOIA releases are also posted on the site to give the public examples of the types of records 
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that are made available through the law. 

The Depart:m:mt ofJustice envisions that this website will be a one-stop shop both fur reviewing agency 
compliance with the FOIA and fur learning about how the FOIA process works. We plan to continually add 
features and updates to the site, and we welcome connnents from both the public and from agencies. 

Now, looking ahead, OIP will be assessing where agencies stand in their ongoing effOrts to improve compliance 
with the FOIA. We will be providing additional training to agencies. We'll continue our outreach to requesters. 

As I stated earlier, the depart:m:mt is connnitted to achieving the new era of open government that the president 
envisions. We've made progress in the past two years toward that goal, but OIP will continue to work diligently to 
help agencies achieve even greater transparency in the years ahead. 

In closing, the Department of Justice looks furward to working together with the connnittee on all matters 
pertaining to the FOrA, and rd be pleased to answer any questions that you or any other member of the 
connnittee might have. Thank you 

SEN. LEAHY: Thank you verynruch, and we'll also hear -- befure we go to questions -- from Director Miriam 
Nisbet. And we've been joined by Senator Cornyn -- did you notice? Ms. Nisbet is -- (inaudible) -- director of 
the Office of Government Infurmation Services at the National Archives and Records Association Befure that, she 
served as director of the Infurmation Society Division fur UNESCO. Her extensive infurmation policy experience 
incWes previous work as legislative counsel to the American Library Association and the deputy director of the 
Office ofInfurmation Policy fur DOJ. She earned her bachelor's degree and law degree from the University of 
North Carolina. Welcome back. 

MS. NISBET: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 

Good morning to you, Senator Grassley and members of the connnittee. I really appreciate the opportunity to be 
here with you during Sunshine Week to talk about my office, which is an important part of the freedom of 
infurmation and open government initiatives of the federal government. 

As you know, the Office of Government Infurmation Services -- or OGIS, as we refer to it -- has been hard at 
work carrying out its statutory mission since opening in September 2009. While we have worked to resolve 
disputes under the Freedom ofInfurmation Act and to review agency FOIA policy procedures and compliance, 
we have realized that nruch of our work fulls under the designation that Congress gave us as the FOIA 
ombudsman. As an ombudsman, OGIS acts as a confidential, infurmal infurmation resource, communications 
channel and complaint handler. OGIS supports and advocates fur the FOIA process and does not champion 
requesters over agencies or vice versa. We encourage a more collaborative, accessible FOIA process fur 
everyone. 

We are off to quite a start. In our first 18 months, we heard from requesters from43 states, the District of 
Cohnnbia, Puerto Rico and 12 fureign countries. We answered questions, provided infurmation, listened to 
complaints and tried to help in any way we could. For the more substantive disputes, we fucilitated discussions 
between the parties, both over the phone and in person, and worked to help them find nnnually acceptable 
solutions. 

web.lexis-nexis.com/congcomp/printdoc 7/36 



12115/11 ProQuest® Congressional - Document 

The statutory tenD, ''mediation services," which you all are aware of as authors of that language, incWes the 
fullowing: funnal mediation, filci1itation and ombuds services. oms continues to offur funnal mediation as an 
option fur resolving disputes, but so fur we've not yet had a case in which the parties agreed to participate in that 
process. However, we have fuund that the less furmal method of filci1itation by oms staff provides a very similar 
process and parties are more willing to engage with oms and with each other without the perceived funnality of 
mediation 

Since September 2009, oms has closed 541 cases, 124 of them true disputes between FOIA requesters and 
agencies, such as disputes over rees charged and FOIA exemptions as applied. As a filci1itator fur the FOIA 
process to work as it is intended, we were not calling balls or strikes but letting the parties try to work matters out 
with our assistance in an effurt to avoid litigation In three-quarters of the disputes we handled, we believe that the 
parties walked away sati<lfied and that oms involvement helped to resolve their disputes. 

A realization we quickly mced is that defining success is a challenge. The final resuh of our process is not both 
parties getting exactly what they want --- sometirres not even close --- but ifwe are able to help them in some 
way by providing more infurmation or by helping them understand the other party's interests, we have provided a 
valuable service. When oms first set out, we spoke of changing a cukure or mind-set from one of reacting to a 
dispute in an adversarial setting to one of actively managing conflict in a neutral setting. 

Because we have had so many requests fur mediation services, we've also been challenged in setting up a 
comprehensive review strategy fur that prong of our statutory mission For now, the review plan incWes providing 
agencies with FO IA best practices, using existing data to address topics such as backlogs fur refurrals and 
consuhations, and oifur what we call collaborative reviews along side willing agencies. We are also offuring training 
fur FOIA proressionals in dispute resolution skills to help them to prevent or resolve disputes at the earliest 
possible tirre. 

oms has a unique perspective on the way FOIA works. As an entity that works side-by-side with agency FOIA 
proressionals to improve the process from within and that also works closely with requesters on the outside to 
address shortcomings, we have seen the importance of building relationships and trust among the members of the 
FO IA community. It's an exciting process, and while we have just gotten started and see it as a long-tenn effurt, 
we are pleased to see so many positive resuhs in the short tenn and to see that our process works. 

Thank you Please let me know if you have questions or ifwe can help your constituents. 

SEN. LEAHY: Thank you very rrruch. 

Let me ask this -- we've talked about this, but I've worked fur years on a biprian basis to reinvigorate FOIA, 
and I'm pleased by the support we've gotten fur that I was also pleased when -- in March 2009, when Attorney 
General Holder issued new FOIA guidelines. It, I believe, rigbtfiilly restored the presumption of disclosure of the 
report released yesterday by the National Security Archives fuund only half of the redera1 agencies surveyed had 
taken concrete steps to update the FOIA policies and procedures in light of this guidance. They're doing what they 
did in past administrations. 

So Ms. Pustay, what's the department doing to help keep the president's promise of a more transparent 
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MS. PUSTAY: To respond to the National Security Archive report issue first, the conclusions that they reached in 
that report are incomplete because the eight agencies were asked -- all 97 agencies subject to the FOIA were 
specifically asked by the Department of Justice to address the issues of training and -- training guidance and 
staffing, which are the two mctors that were klOked at by the National Security Archive report. And what 
happened with the archive report is they took the absence of a response or the absence of documents to mean that 
the agency had done nothing in those fuctors. But if you look at their chiefFOIA officer reports, they have 
addressed those very fuctors. And so, fur example, an agency might not have created its own guidance fur 
implementing the -- Attorney General Holder's guidelines, but what they've done is used the Department of 
Justice's guidance that's already posted and has been posted since the guidelines first came out. 

SEN. LEAHY: Well, that's because some of the agencies -- in mct, 12 ofthem-- have pending FOIA requests 
that go way back. They weren't answered during the Bush administration and so on, being answered -- they go 
back six years. What do you do about that? I mean, that seems somewhat excessive to me. 

MS. PUSTAY: Right. No, of course, the--

SEN. LEAHY: Especially if you have to make decisions in your own lire based on those answers. 

MS. PUSTAY: We have -- the age of the oldest requests across the governm:mt definitely continues to be too 
old. There's no doubt about that And that has been a specific area that we have fucused on The Department of 
Justice first required agencies to report on their 10 oldest requests as a way of making more accountability and 
transparency on the issue of the age. So it's specifically something that we're asking agencies to address, When 
they look at their backlogs, we ask them to measure it both in terms of mnnbers of requests and age of request, 
because we see them as two distinct aspects of backlog reduction 

I am happy to say, though, that fur the second straight year in a row, agencies have reduced their backlogs. So 
since implementation of our new guidelines, we're seeing progress. Backlogs are going down The age of them -­
the age of the oldest is improving, so we are on the right track. 

SEN. LEAHY: Well, let me ask on that, Ms. Nisbet, we have the Office ofGovernm:m1 Infurmation Services, 
OGIS, that is trying to provide cost-effuctive ahernatives to resolving FOIA disputes because, as you know, 
sometimes a dispute can just drag on and the cost gets too rrruch and so nothing ever happens. Can OGIS actually 
help reduce the current backlog that Ms. Pustay has talked about? 

MS. NISBET: Senator Leahy, we believe that we can I'm not sure that we're able today to show in 
measurements exactly how we're doing that, but I can tell you that the cases that come to us -- and we've now had 
as of last week just shyof600. About one in five do continue to be problems with delays in response, but what we 
are finding that we can do with that, with the help of the agencies and working with the requesters, is sometimes to 
narrow the fucus of the request, help with the search, resolve issues pretty quickly in terms ofmes, and move 
things along that way. 

SEN. LEAHY: We had -- I'll go back to Ms. Pustay-- last week the Supreme Court held Milnervs. Navy -- the 
government may not rely upon FOIA Exemption 2 to withhold government records that are unrelated to personnel 
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or 1nnnan resources matter. They rejected the concept of the so-called ''High 2" --

MS. PUSTAY: ''High 2." 

SEN. LEAHY: -- exemption ofFOIA that was established in the D.C. circuit in the Crooker case --

MS. PUSTAY: Crooker case. 

SEN. LEAHY: -- about 25,30 years ago. 

MS. PUSTAY: Right -- 1981. (Laughs.) 

SEN. LEAHY: Som: -- it seelIl'l like -- to som: of us it seelIl'l like only yesterday. (Laughter.) 

Som: have suggested that Congress should enact legislation to allow the govemm:nt to contimre to withhold ''High 
2" infurmation in response to Milner. So what's the departm:nt's position on that, and are you going to oppose 
legislation in Congress? 

MS. PUSTAY: We're considering the impact of the Milner decision. As you can imagine, it's just brand new, and 
so I'm not prepared yet to say what we're going to propose. We're obviously carefu11y looking at the impact of the 
decision. 

SEN. LEAHY: Well, as you're looking at it, please keep in touch with myself; I know -- Senator Comyn, Senator 
Grassley--

MS. PUSTAY: I appreciate that. 

SEN. LEAHY:You'ndo--

SEN. GRASSLEY:Yeah, thank you 

Going back to som: statem:nts I made in my opening COIIll:rents, it would seem obvious that the political vetting 
policy at the Departm:nt ofHom:1and Security that was uncovered by AP violates both the president's and the 
attorney generafs orders set furth in their m:IIXlS. A simple question first to you, Ms. Pustay, and then to Ms. 
Ni<lbet: Would you agree? 

MS. PUSTAY: I'm sorry, I --

SEN. GRASSLEY: OK. The question is, would you agree, whether -- what The Associated Press uncovered 
about the Departm:nt ofHom:1and Security and their political vetting process violates both the president and the 
attomey generafs orders set furth in m:IIXJS from --

MS. PUSTAY: Ob, certainly. If the statem:nts in the article are true, of course it would be very serious and would 
be som:thing that we would have serious concerns with, of course. 
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I can ten you that the policy of the Department of Justice and certainly what we share with agencies and in our 
training with agencies, our 101 guidance, all our presentations, of course is that the identity of a requester has 
nothing to do with the response given to the request, that the process is one that is to be handled by agencies 
without any -- in the ronnal course of events, typically FOIA proressionals within an agency are career employees 
who handle the requests -- in a routine matter that does not involve or implicate any of the things that were 
rrentioned in that article. 

SEN. GRASSLEY: Can you say whether you agree or disagree, Ms. Nisbet? 

MS. NISBET: WeD, I think the issues raised are of great concern, and I do rote that Congressman Issa is 
continuing to look into this matter, as you rererred to, to find out IIDre about it and to see what steps might need to 
betaken 

SEN. GRASSLEY: Thank you 

March 19, 2009 IrelIDrandum, General Holder repeated President Obama's hopeful prorouncerrents about 
transparency and stated, quote, ''Each agency nrust be fully accountable fur the administration of the Freedom of 
Infunmtion Act," end of quote. So Ms. Pustay, how are the political appointees at the Department ofHorreland 
Security who authored and carried out the political vetting policy being held accountable fur their actions? 

MS. PUSTA Y: I'm really rot -- I don't think I'm in a position right row to talk about the Departrrent ofHorreland 
Security and their -- and this -- the allegations from that article. What I can say is that part of what the departrrent 
is doing to make real the words of accountability is connected directly with our website, our FOIAgov website, 
where all the detailed data about how FOIA requests are handled is available now fur an the public to see and to 
be able to compare and contrast infunmtion 

SEN. GRASSLEY: What sort ofan environment would you need to talk about it? Or is it -- are you saying you 
can't talk about it at all? 

MS. PUSTAY: I'm rot -- I'm rot in a position to talk about the Departrrent ofHorreland Security's process. 

SEN. GRASSLEY: OK. Is your office or any other unit in the Justice Department or any other unit in the 
goVeInment investigating the political vetting policy at Horreland Security which was uncovered by Associated 
Press? That's simple. Either you're investigating it or you aren't investigating it. 

MS. PUSTAY: I'm rot aware ofus investigating it. 

SEN. GRASSLEY: OK. So then obviously the next fullow-up question was who was conducting the investigation, 
but you don't think that there's any investigation 

Number -- third question: March 1st, 2011, Representative Frank Wolf questioned General Holder about 
Christian AdaIIl'l's article. The attorney general testified that he had looked into the issues and assured to 
Congressman Wolf that there's no ideological component to how the Justice Departrrent answers FOIA requests. 
So to you as weD, would you describe fur us in as rrruch detail as possible the Justice Departm:nt's investigation 
into the allegations made in Christian AdaIIl'I's article? 
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MS. PUSTAY: On that topic, I can ten you that we're klOking into the issue at the Department ofJustice and there 
will be a response coming to Representative Issa. What I also, though, can ten you is that there -- from what I 
know of the filcts of that -- those allegations is that the article mistook diffi:rent versions -- diffi:rent types of access 
procedures that the civil rights had -- compared apples and oranges, if you were. There -- the Civil Rights Division 
bas multiple ways to access records separate and apart fromFOIA, and so one of the causes of confusion or 
concem raised by the article writer was mixing those two diffi:rent furm; of access up. Again, I can ten you the 
policy certainly within the Department of Justice is that the identity of the requester has nothing to do with how the 
-- how a FOIA request is processed. 

SEN. GRASSLEY: My time's up. I hope I can have a second round. I guess you're in charge now. 

SENATOR SHELDON WHITEHOUSE (D-RI): I'm sure there will be no objection to a second round, ahhough 
we do have a second pane~ as wen. But I'n leave that to the chairman on his retwn. 

Thank you both fur your testirrony. I'm interested in the extent to which the FOIA process might be filcilitated by 
Imdem digital technology. There's a sort of a early beginnings of a website in FOIA.gov, but as I understand it, it 
tracks the FOIA process but doesn't contain rrruch substantive infurmation of any kind. As somebody who in my 
state Iifu was on the receiving end ofa lot ofFOIAs, we had to copy stuffand send it out, and then it was gone. 
And if somebody else asked the same question a week later, you had to go back, copy it an again and send it out 
again. And why is there not a database that you can go and search through the way -- why can't you Goog1e an the 
old FOIA requests? Should we be able to? Is there a process fur getting there, and what can we do to accelerate 
that process? 

MS. PUSTAY: That is absolutely something that agencies, and certainly at the Justice Department we're very 
rrruch -- very rrruch working on One of the things already that's available on the FOIA.gov website are links to 
every single FOIA website of every agency so that the records that each agency has already put up on their 
website are an available just by clicking on the -- clicking on the links. So that's existing right now in FOIA.gov. 

SEN. WHITEHOUSE: Yeah. 

MS. PUSTAY: We're working ona search capability that will allow the requests -- a member of the public or a 
requester to type in a search term and have the technology capabilities ofFOIA.gov launch a search through an the 
FOIA websites of every agency and pull up an the records that would match that term So that's something that's 
actively being worked on now, so we're hopeful-- we're pretty hopeful that that capability will be available soon 
on FOIAgov. 

SEN. WHITEHOUSE: We ran -- I ran pretty smaR offices and I don't think we kept the old FOIA requests once 
they were sent out. What's the -- what do the rederal agencies do --

MS. PUSTAY: Agencies absolutely need -- a common part of our guidance is to keep copies of what has been 
processed, because of course the easiest way to process it when it comes in the second time is that you already 
have it. But Imre than that, we have had a policy fur quite some -- we have actually by law, once a request bas 
been -- once a subject matter bas been requested three times, it's required by the FOIA itself to be posted on the 
agency's website. With the -- Attorney General Holder's guidelines, we've expanded that and have been 
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encouraging agencies at any time to think about records that might be of interest to the public, put them up on the 
website even befure there's one request We've certainly seen in the chiefFOIA officer reports that we have just 
gotten in this past week lots of agencies taking steps to put infurmation up on the website that's been requested 
and to anticipate interest in records. So agencies are definitely right onboard with this concept. 

SEN. WHITEHOUSE: Two questions further. Does the search capacity, or when it's installed will the search 
capacity reach the FOIA request or just the substance? Because sometimes the value of the FOIA answer is that a 
knowledgeable person has aggregated the infurmation that's relevant to a particular request, and if it's just out there 
and you don't really know -- if the responsiveness in and ofitselfi<; of some infurmative value--

MS. PUSTAY: Right. Of course. 

SEN. WHITEHOUSE: Are they just posting things or is the original request that came in that they're responsive to 
also part of what's on the web and what can be searched? 

MS. PUSTAY: The answer i<; yes to both of those things. 

SEN. WHITEHOUSE: OK. 

MS. PUSTAY: Both types of things are being posted, both types of things will be retrievable with our search 
fimction once we get it up and running. 

SEN. WHITEHOUSE: OK. And is there a role fur -- I mean, a lot of this stuffends up ingovennnent archives 
one way or another. 

Is there a way fur other agencies to participate in this and have the FOIA thing be a part ofa larger govermnent 
records retrieval and retention system? 

MS. PUSTA Y: WeD, FOIA already is, obviously, part of a larger system because every agency handles its own 
records, and so it -- and every agency has a FOIA website where there are things that are required to be put on 
that website. FOIA.gov is now our new way to capture all of that material across the govennnent from one single 
website. So that's what we think i<; one of the real beauties ofFOIAgov and --

SEN. WHITEHOUSE: In my last 15 seconds, how fur back are agencies expected to go in stuff that they've set 
up, asked and loaded onto their websites? 

MS. PUSTAY: What we advise agencies to do is to put on their website infurmation that they anticipate would be 
of interest to someone today. So that's a judgment call they make, and we've seen really good examples of 
agencies thinking proactively when events occur and they know what requests will come in, and so they put the 
infurmation up on their website. 

SEN. WHITEHOUSE: My time is expired. Mr. Chairman, thank you veryrrruch. 

SEN. LEAHY: Thank: you 
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Senator Cornyn? 

SENATOR JOHN CORNYN (R-TX): Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 

Mr. Chairman, it's been a pleasure to work with you on FOIA issues over the eight years I've been in the Senate, 
and I'm glad to see Ms. Nisbet here, who is the first ombudsman created by the federal government to help people 
who request records navigate the labyrinthine bureaucracy of the federal govennnent to try to get some 
infurrmtion I know you and I both believe, Mr. Chairman, that openness and transparency is essential to se]f:. 
govennnent, and frankly, I think we need to have a dramatic cuhure change here in Washington, D.C. about just 
whose records these are and to tmke sure there are real teeth and enfurcement procedures within the law that 
guarantee a reasonable request would be responded to in a reasonable time. 

Ms. Pustay, let me ask you: According to the report released Monday by the National Security Archive, 90 
difIerent FOIA requests -- but 17 agencies were reported still working on a response to the request after 117 
business days when the law provides fur 20 days. Can you explain -- is that -- what consequences there are when 
an agency fuils to respond in a timely basis to a FOIA request? 

MS. PUSTAY: The statute provides, of course, that there's a 20- working-day period to respond, but then the 
FOIA also actually recognizes that there are situations where agencies will need additional time to respond -- if 
they have vohnninous records to process or have to search in a field fucility, that type of thing. And so the idea that 
that's buih into the statute is that requesters are notified of the time or the estimated time fur completion and given a 
chance to work out an agreed upon time with the requester. Ultimately, of course, if the requester is unhappy with 
the delay, what we would certainly encourage the requester to do is to contact the FOIA public liaison or contact 
the agency official who is handling the request to find out what the delays are all about. 

SEN. CORNYN: And in each case where there's a FOIA request made, you're saying the agency nrust within the 
20 working days provided by the statute provide a response either including the records that were requested or a 
response that there are vohnninous records that are going to require some time to examine and pull out relevant 
records. Is that what you're saying? 

MS. PUSTAY: Yes. Sure. The statute -- the statute itselfprovides -- there's a standard 20-dayresponse period, 
or there's an additional 1 O-day response period if you have those circUlIl!tances, and then also the statute provides 
fur if the period of time to respond is going to be longer than that 30 days total, there's a process where the agency 
gives an estimate to the requester and works with the requester on the time. 

SEN. CORNYN: And if they don't do that, what recourse does the ciWen have? 

MS. PUSTAY: Ultimately, of course, a requester can go to court because there's constructive exhaustion buih into 
the FOIA, where if their agency goes beyond the statutory time period, you are allowed as a requester to go to 
court. Nobody encourages that, nobody wants to see that happen, and what we have instead is a real fucus on 
having agencies work with the requester to explain why the delay is happening. We have 600,000 requests across 
the government, so it's an incredible crush of requests that agencies are fucing, and oftentimes just explaining that to 
requesters is helpful. 

SEN. CORNYN: WeD, what I meant earlier when I said we need to change the culture here in Washington-- I 
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think too often the agencies believe that this is a nuisance to be avoided and they don't treat the requester as a 
customer or the mct -- or recognire -- acknowledge the mct that actually the fudera1 govermnent works fur the 
people who are requesting the documents. 

But Ms. Nic;bet, let me ask you in your capacity as the ombudsman, what's been your experience? I notice in this 
National Security Archive report, fuur of the agencies denied even getting the FOIA requests, and you know and I 
know that saying, 'Well, you can always sue the fudera1 government in court" -- that's a hollow promi<;e in mmy 
instances because people simply don't have the resources to do that 

MS. NISBET: And, indeed, I believe that was one of the strong interests of you all in setting up the Office of 
Govemment Infurmation Services is to have an ahemative to litigation so that neither requesters nor agencies have 
to litigate over issues, particularly involving delays when the agency hasn't had a -- hasn't been able to give a 
response. 

What we are finding, though, is that, yes, delays, as I mentioned befure, contimre to be an issue. It's a legitimate 
reason There are legitimate reasons fur that, of course, because requests can be quite complex, records can be 
vohnninous; sometimes it's very difficuh to even start a search fur records in a short armunt of time. But what is 
important is having some channels of coIIllIlUllication between the requester and the agency. Requesters often are 
willing to work with the agency, and, in mct, they should work with the agency on the scope of the request They 
are understanding of delays if someone talks to them, explains to them and works with them so that they know that 
someone is trying to provide that service that you're talking about, even if it's not going to be as quickly as the 
requester likes. 

SEN. CORNYN: I know my time is up, but let me just -- fur this round, but let me just say that I think that was 
one of the lIDst important things that we were able to do in the legislation in the Open Government Act is to create 
an ombudsman that could help the requester narrow the request because -- and to get what they're -- what they 
want as opposed to overly broad requests which basically mi<;ses the target And so I think it's really important that 
we have somebody they can talk to, not an adversarial relationship but somebody who can help :fRcilitate that and 
get the infurmation in the hands of the requester on a timely basis. 

Thank. you, Mr. Chainnan. 

SEN. LEAHY: Thank. you Did you have any other questions of this panel befure -- because we only have another 
half.hour. 

SEN. GRASSLEY: Yeah. I've got, I hope, only three short questions. I already refurred in my opening connnents 
about our letter to the inspector generals at 29 agencies wanting to request from the extent to which requests from 
lawmakers, journaffits, activist groups and watchdog organizations were -- the inspector general was asked to 
determine the extent to which political appointees are systematically made aware ofFOIA requests and their part 
in the decision-making process. We asked the inspector general to look into that He passed it on to you, and then 
your response admits Freedom ofInfurmation Act offices at the Justice Department make their political leadership 
aware ofFOIA requests and, quote, unquote, "seek their input on responding." Your mem> does not provide any 
specifics on the nature of the input from political appointees. 

So these are my questions. What type of input do political appointees under the Obama administration give to 
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career employees regarding response to freedom ofinfunnation requests? And then I have two fullow-up 
questions. 

MS. PUSTAY: When I -- to prepare that response, I did a survey of an the components in DOJ, and 
fimdamentally I was completely unsurprised by the responses that they gave me, because the practice that's at 
DOJ now is exactly how it's been fur the two decades that I've been working at ooJ. So there was nothing 
unusual at all. 

Essentially components will make the management offices of the Department of Justice aware of requests in their 
capacity as the managers of the department. So it's completely appropriate, completely something that we've seen, 
literally, since the -- fur the decades that I've been at DOJ. 

SEN. GRASSLEY: Since the memo was put out in January 2009, have responses to FOIA requests ever been 
delayed pending review by political appointees at the Department ofJustice? 

MS. PUSTAY: Not at the Department ofJustice. We have, I think, an outstanding track record at DOJ of 
processing more requests these past two years than we ever have befure of releasing more records these past two 
years than ever befure and of managing our backlog over the past two years. So I think the fucts speak fur 
themselves. 

SEN. GRASSLEY: OK. Then why or why not to this question: Do you believe that the involvement of political 
appointees in FOIA requests is acceptable practice within the Justice Department? 

MS. PUSTAY: Ob, the involvement that we have is totally acceptable, and as I said, exactly how it's always been 
It's awareness fur awareness in management purposes, and that's all. 

SEN. GRASSLEY: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 

SEN. LEAHY: Thank you very nruch. 

Senator Cornyn. 

SEN. CORNYN: I just have a row more questions. 

I noticed in the FOIA.gov website, which I compliment the department fur putting up -- I hope it becomes very 
robust and something that people will be able to use fur multiple purposes. But I notice that fur fiscal year 2010, 
the Department ofJustice received -- it looks like 7,700 -- excuse me -- 7,224 requests. And -- or, I'm sorry, it 
looks like that was the number of requests pending. 

MS. PUSTAY: We get about 63,000 requests a year at DOJ. 

SEN. CORNYN: So -- OK, I read this wrong. So the number of requests pending at the start of the year was 
7,224. And at the end of the year, it was 7,538. So rather than chipping away at the backlog, the backlog is 

. right? getting worse, . 
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MS. PUSTAY: Our backlog only increased by 204 at the Department ofJustice, and that's despite receiving over 
2,000 more requests this past year than the year befure. So --

SEN. CORNYN: I guess you're looking at the glass being half-full and I'm looking at it being --

MS. PUSTAY: Absohrtely. 

SEN. CORNYN: -- ba1f:.empty. 

MS. PUSTAY: Absohrtely. Out of63,000 requests--

SEN. CORNYN: And your backlog is getting worse. It's sort of like the federal governrrent and spending. Our 
debt keeps getting bigger and bigger. 

SEN. LEAHY: Let her finish the answer, though, if you could. 

SEN. CORNYN:WeD, I'm sorry. Ithougbt--

SEN. LEAHY: I'nmake sure you have pIentyoftim: to continue. 

Had you finished the answer? 

MS. PUSTAY: With having increased our processing of requests -- we processed more this past year than we did 
last year. Despite having received 2,000 more requests, the backlog only went up by 204 out of 63,000 incoming 
requests fur a year. I think that really is a remarkable stati<;tic. 

SEN. CORNYN: And at the end of the year, you had 7,538 requests pending. 

MS. PUSTAY: Yeah, you're looking at -- pending is di1furent than backlog, but that could be right. Pending could 
!rean it CaIre in the day befure the report was issued. Backlog!reans it's sO!rething that's been on the books over 
the statutory tim: period. So it's just two di1furent stats. That's an. 

SEN. CORNYN: And how many -- how many are in the backlog? 

MS. PUSTAY: Two hundred and fuur--

SEN. CORNYN:Outof--

MS. PUSTAY: Out of--

SEN. CORNYN: Out of the 7,538 --

MS. PUSTAY: Yes, exactly. Exactly. Our backlog is only 204. 

SEN. CORNYN: Following up on Senator GrassIey's questions, is it ever appropriate fur political decisions to 
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stall or block a FOIA request, Ms. Pustay? 

MS. PUSTAY: No, not to stan or block. I certainly wouldn't agree with those words. 

SEN. CORNYN: I treaD, it's simply not the law. 

MS. PUSTAY:No. No. 

SEN. CORNYN: As you pointed out, it's irrelevant who the requester is. 

MS. PUSTAY: It's irrelevant who the requester is, and --

SEN. CORNYN: Or the pmpose fur which the infurmation is being requested, correct? 

MS. PUSTAY: Absolutely. Absolutely. 

SEN. CORNYN: And don't you agree that ifwe were able to create a system whereby there were more timely 
responses by federal agencies to FOIA requests, there would perhaps be a greater sense of trust and confidence 
among requesters that everybody was being treated exactly the Satre? 

In other words, when there is such a large backlog in requests or delays in producing the documents, it seem; to 
tre that that gives rise to concerns that maybe people aren't being treated on an equal basis and the law is not 
being unifunnly applied. Would you agree with that concern? 

MS. PUSTAY: It's not at an my experience that that is a concern. And I have regular contact with requesters. I 
have a lot of outreach with the requester coI1llIlUllity. And, of course, just by working with agencies day in and day 
out, we see first-hand across the government that on many, many occasions, agency officials are colIllllWlicating 
with FOIA requesters, explaining what the situation is, explaining what the backlog is, where a request might be in 
a queue. 

And in my experience, overwhehningly requesters are understanding of the process. We have long since -- we 
have long had a policy of asking agencies to give contact infurmation to requesters so that there can be a dialogue. 
'fbi<; is not sotrething that's new. And it's a process that really does help increase understanding between 
requesters and agencies. So my experience would not at all-- is not at all in line with the concern that you're 
ral'img. 

SEN. CORNYN: So everybody's happy with the--

MS. PUSTA Y: WeD, I'm sure everyone's not happy. (Laughs.) But they're accepting of the situation Again, 
600,000 FOIA requests across the government is an incredible crush, an incredible workload. And it went up this 
past year. 

SEN. CORNYN: WeD, it shouldn't be just looked at as a crush or a workload. It's the responsibility--

MS. PUSTAY: Oh, sure. 
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SEN. CORNYN: -- under the law to respond--

MS. PUSTAY: Sure, sure. 

SEN. CORNYN: -- ona timely basis. Correct? 

MS. PUSTAY: I say -- I use those words -- no, I absohrtely agree. I use those words just to convey the 
magnitude of the interest in making requests. 

SEN. CORNYN: And Director Nisbet, I just have one final question of you If I understand the record correctly, 
you were the one who Irediated the Associated Press FOIA request of the Department ofRoIreland Security that 
resuhed in the revelation of political screening. Can you tell us what your reaction was to the DRS conduct that 
was revealed in that story? 

MS. NISBET: WeD, our part in that was that the Associated Press carre to us because it had not gotten the 
response to its FOIArequest fur the e-mails on that subject We were very pleased that we were able to help in 
that case and to help get those records released to the Associated Press, as a resuh of which the stories were 
written that Senator Grassley refurred to. 

I have to say that is the only request that I can recall of that nature. You're asking about requesters complaining 
about that But certainly that was a significant concern in that case. And we were glad that we were able to help. 

SEN. CORNYN: And you shared that concern of political screening. 

MS. NISBET: Certainly if the allegations are as written, that is a concem And I believe that's certainly -- my 
colleague from the Justice Departrrent would agree with that 

SEN. CORNYN:Thankyou 

SEN. GRASSLEY: Could I have 15 seconds fur an observation as we close this panel? I don't--

SEN. LEAHY: Go ahead. 

SEN. GRASSLEY: I don't dispute anything that you've told Ire, because you said, weD, it's not a whole lot 
diIfurent than it's been fur 20 years. But, you see, that's what's wrong, whether it's 20 years under a Republican or 
20 years under a Democrat 

But also, it also tells Ire what I -- the point I tried to make in my opening col1lllElt, that the president set a very 
high benchmark. And ifwe're doing the sarre thing after two and a haIfyears of this administration, the sarre as 
we've been doing fur 20 years, the president's benchmark isn't being fullowed by the people he appoints. 

Thank you very much. 

SEN. LEAHY: Do you want to respond? 
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MS. PUSTAY:Yes, ifyou--

SEN. LEAHY: It's OK. We'll take time out of the next panel Go ahead. 

MS. PUSTAY: Really, really quickly, my comment about things being the same was completely connected to the 
idea of review or alerting political officials ofFOIA requests. That stayed the same. The process ofFOIA has 
changed dramatically. I really have never seen transparency as fulsorre and as robustly worked on as I have now. 
I think we're the most transparent that we've ever been. I think it's quite a diflerent day now. 

SEN. LEAHY: Thank you 

I thank you very much. And we'll take a two-minute recess while we change panels. 

(Recess.) 

SEN. LEAHY: Thank you 

The first witness will be John Podesta. I reel tbi<; is sorrebody who knows tbi<; room very well. He's my funner 
chief of staft; furrrerly counsel here in tbi<; committee, and cmrently serves as the president and CEO of the Center 
fur American Progress. 

He's also been White House chief of staff to President Bill Clinton. He's held several other positions in the Clinton 
administration, including assistant to the president, deputy chief of sta:tt; staff secretary and senior policy advisor 
and goVerIlImnt infunnation, privacy, telecomnnmications, security, regulatory policy. He's served IlIIlIXlfOUS 

positions on Capitol Hill. 

I apologize fur the laryngitis tbi<; morning. 

He served as co-chair of President Obama's transition, where he laid the groundwork fur President Obama's 
historic FOIA rremorandum, which restored the presumption of disclosure fur gownnnent infunnation. He's a 
graduate of Knox College, Georgetown University Law Center, where he's cmrently a visiting proressor of law. 

Mr. Podesta, it's great to have you here; great to see you 

MR. PODESTA: Thank you, Mr. Chairman and Senator Grassley. It's great to be back in the committee. And it 
couldn't be led by two greater chan:tJions of openness and accountability, so it's a pleasure to be here during 
sunshine week. 

I think tbi<; hearing corres at a morrentous time fur the Freedom ofInfunnation Act, as it corres on the heels of last 
week's Suprerre Court ruling in Milner, which has been refurred to, versus the Depa.rtmmt of the Navy, which 
properly narrowed the scope of the B-2 exemption, and the recent AT&T decision finding that corporations don't 
have a right of personal privacy under the act. 

We should celebrate these victories, but there's more work to do. While President Obama has delivered, in many 
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respects, on his promise to have the nnst transparent admini<Itration in the nation's history, the resuhs on FOIA, 
while improving, I think, still have a long way to go. 

The problem, I think, Senators, isn't one of policy. I think Attorney General Holder's FOIA memorandlDIl teDs 
federal agencies, in the face of doubt, openness prevails. And the Office ofManagemmt & Budget's open 
govennrent directive instructs agencies to reduce backlogs by 10 percent a year. 

The problem, I think, as this committee has noted this Imming, isn't implementation Federal agencies in the year 
after the Holder memo increased their use oflega! exemptions to keep nnre records secret, according to the 
Associated Press, and the Justice Department continues to defend expansive agency interpretations ofFOIA 
exemptions. 

I would note, in the administration's favor, they have reduced the use of the B-2 and B-5 exemptions in the past 
year, which I would characterize as we just don't want to give you the infurmation exemptions in the act. 

So the question today is how do we t\DIl the good policy that's embedded in the president and attorney general's 
Imnnranda, OMB directives, into reality. And I offur three ideas. 

First, along the lines of Senator Whitehouse, we should require automatic Internet disclosure fur publicly useful 
data sets. FOIA, of course, rests on fuur key principles. Disclosure should be the general rule, not the exception 
All individual<; have equal right of access to infurmation, as Senator Grassley has noted. The burden of disclosure 
should rest with the govennrent, not with the people. And people denied access to doc1Ilrents have a right to relief 
through the courts. 

As importantly as those fuur principles, when FOIA was passed, then-Attorney General Ramsey Clark added 
another, which is that there needed to be a fimdamental shift in govemImnt attitude toward public records and the 
value of openness. 

Those principles need to apply and that attitude needs to be updated fur the digital age. You've done a good deal 
of that in the 2007 aImndments that were processed by this committee and championed by the chairman and 
Senator Cornyn. But disclosure should be automatic, not just in response to requests, and it should be done 
through the Internet so everyone has easy and iInrn:diate access. 

I think the recent experience ofRecovery.gov and Data.gov provide useful nndels fur Congress to expand 
automatic disclosure under 552(a) of the act. Congress can help by setting standards fur exactly what should be 
automatically disclosed and disseminated. 

Second, we should build a searchable online database where the public can track FOIA requests and view agency 
responses. The public in nnst cases cannot see what FOIA requests have been submitted to federal agencies or 
what infurmation was provided in response to those requests. 

The administration's planned FOIAgov website will provide report cards on compliance. That's an important step 
in the right direction It's not a great leap furward. I think we propose that if the federal govermnent would 
automatically publish their FOIA requests as wen as infurmation provided in response through a centralUl:d 
searchable online database, automating these fimctions will increase productivity. It will save nnney. It'n serve the 
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public better. 

Third, we need to improve infurmation use to assess FOIA implementation. Annual agency FOIA reports, as, 
again, the testirrony this morning indicates, provide useful data on requests granted and denied, but the Depart:rrent 
ofJustice, fur example, does not di<;close the nwnber and percentage ofFOIA denials it chooses to defund, nor 
do agencies report what they have done to comply with the Holder rremo. So I think more can be done in that 
arena too. 

And if I could, Mr. Chairman, I'd like to call your attention to one other topic vital to openness and free debate. 
Two Senate bills introduced last month would criminalize the disclosure of classified infunmtion to Ulllluthomed 
people. 

Protecting properly classified govennnent infunmtion from improper di<;closure is an inlJortant priority. I think I've 
certainly earned my spurs trying to reduce the nwnber of classified records while simultaneously better protecting 
classified infunmtion, but these proposals sweep too broadly. They create a chilling effi:ct on legitimate 
govemrrent comrrnmication. 

I think we've corre too fur without an official secrets act in our country, and we canoot afibrd to sacrifice that 
bard-won progress to shortsighted doubt So I would ask you, Mr. Chairman, to take a look at those proposals. I 
don't think they'n rreet with your high standards of openoess. 

Thank you 

SEN. LEAHY: Thank you very much. 

Sarah Cohen is certainly fumiIiar with this committee and our work up here. She's Knight proressor of the practice 
of journalism in public policy, Duke University Sanfurd School of Public Policy. She joined the School of Public 
Policy in 2009. 

She worked nearly 20 years as a reporter and editor. She earned many of the major awards injournalism, 
including the Pulitzer Pme, the Goldsmith Pme, the Selden Ring Award, the Investigative Reporters and Editors 
Gold Medal. (Inaudible.) She earned a bachelor's degree from the University ofN orth Carolina-Chapel Hill, a 
master's degree from the University of Maryland. And she's testifYing today in behalf of the SlDlShine In 
Govemrrent Initiative. 

Ms. Cohen, good to have you here. 

MS. COHEN: Thank you very much, Chairman Leahy, Senator Grassley, and members of the committee. Thank 
you so much fur the invitation to talk about the Freedom oflnfunmtion Act in the digital age. 

In my reporting career, I depended frequently on the act, and I appreciate this committee's longstanding 
cOlwntm:mt to accountabi1ity and open records. 

In the past two years, President Obama's policies to promote accountabi1ity through open govemrrent has resulted 
in sorre policy changes that are begirming to aJrect day-to-day practice. But they're still not happening on the 
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Just one example is looser guidelines fur releasing internal e- mailc;, which contributed to our understanding of the 
Deepwater Horizon oil spill and its aftermath. But administrations change. These actions can be reversed as 
quickly as they began. And many of the president's initiatives are aimed at helping consumers find data and that 
collaborative government. 

Public afihlrs journalism requires more than the products of a wen-planned public infurmation effurt. It also 
requires access to the artifiIcts of governing. So FOIA remains a vital too~ and it's a tool that simply just doesn't 
m:et its promise. 

You've heard in the past of problem; that still haven't been resolved, such as agencies' overuse of personal privacy 
exemptions. I know this committee has worked hard to reduce the prolifurationofspecialB-3 arreOOrrents, but 
they remain a concern 

Today I'd like to describe two of the biggest impediments to the efrective use ofFOIA amongjournalists, and I 
detail others in my written statement. But at core, they an suggest a widespread but wrong demuh position that 
records belong to the government and not to the public. 

Thi'l position twns FOIA upside down. Instead of the governrrent convincing the public that certain infurmation 
must be kept secret, in practice the public must convince officials that it should be released. 

The biggest problem injournaIists' use ofFOIA, as has been suggested here, is timeliness. Agencies are reporting 
improved response times, but we're not seeing them yet. Admittedly, reporters' requests are often broad and 
difficuh to ful1ill, and the subjects are quite naturally politically sensitive. But I've never received a final answer to a 
FOIA within the deadline. 

Som: reporters joke about sending birthday cards to their FOIAs because response is m:asured in years, not 
days. And when asked, the Office of Government Infurmation Services can prod agencies to respond, but so fur 
we've seen little in the progress on delays. 

I wanted to higblight one consistent and growing source of delay. That's the requirerrent to vet contracts and other 
documents with the originator to identifY trade secrets and other commercially confidential infurmation. The 
records are then held hostage to the subject of the request. It gets to nm the clock, and it often is granted extensive 
redactions if it responds at an. 

The second point I wanted to make is that agency websites are incomplete and incomprehensible. I and other 
journalists have used FOIA to obtain congressionally rmndated reports on the use offimds in Iraq and 
AJgbanistan, but they're not posted on the Derense Departrrent or inspector general websites. Originally nursing­
hom: inspections with reviewers' COIIllrents, a very common request among local reporters, requires individual 
FOIA requests. 

And even if these kinds of common documents were posted, the chance of finding them is slim. 

In 2009, the Associated Press tried to identifY an of the major agencies' reading room; so it could monitor them It 
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gave up after a week. The reporter had already fuund 97 reading room; injust fuur departments. 

So what can Congress do to improve the implementation? It might go finther than in recent years to enfurce 
reasonable deadlines and appropriate use of exemptions. It could build the current policy of the presumption of 
openness into the law. And it could require di<iclosure in a central virtual location by Cabinet-level agency of 
common public records such as correspondence logs, calendars and spending awards. And it could mJre 
specifically define frequently requested records. Arrj combination of these would remrce the idea that our 
govennrent holds transparency and accountability as a core value. 

Mr. Chairman, I hear you called again the public's access to records a cornerstone of our dem.Jcracy. I appreciate 
the effurts made by Congress and President Obarna to open our government to scrutiny even when that effurt may 
reflect poorly on its perfunnance. But recent changes can't be considered complete until compliance with current 
policy and deadlines is mJre consistent and a structure is erected to prevent this or the next president from 
reverting to secrecy. 

There are certainly times when the dem.Jcratic need fur open records conflicts with other vital priorities, such as 
privacy and national security. I believe journalists and their news organizations would be happy to work on these 
substantive issues if they could be assured that the law usually worked as it should. 

Thank you so rrruch fur the opportunity to talk with you about this. 

SEN. LEAHY: Thank you very rrruch -- (inaudible). 

Our next witness is Thomas Fitton He's the president ofJudicial Watch, a public interest group that is set up to 
investigate government corruption He's been affiliated with Judicial Watch since 1998. He is a furrner talk radio 
and television host and analyst. He's the author of several published articles. He also previously worked at the 
International Policy F onnn, Leadership Institute and Accuracy in Media. Mr. Fitton earned his bachelor's degree 
from George Washington University. 

Mr. Fitton, welcome. Please go ahead. 

MR. FITTON: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 

Thank you, Chairman Leahy and Senator Grassley, fur hosting this hearing. It's an honor fur me, on behalf of 
Judicial Watch, to appear befure this committee. And I want to take some time to extend personal thanks to you 
both, the chairman and Senator Grassley, fur not only your leadership on govennrent transparency, but your often 
unheralded work on behalf of government whistleblowers. 

You helped at least one of our clients many years ago, and I'm sure you've helped many other whistleblowers over 
the years. And these brave fulk: are often alone in their effurts to expose government wrongdoing. So your help is 
crucial and has been crucial to saving jobs and careers. 

Essential to Judicial Watch's anti-corruption and transparency mission, obviously, is the Freedom oflnfurmation 
Act. We're probably the only group on the right that uses it the way we do. We've used this tool effuctively to root 
out corruption in the Clinton administration and to take on the Bush administration's penchant fur improper 
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secrecy. We have nearly 17 years' experience using FOIA to advance the public interest. And without a doubt, 
we're the lIDSt active FOIA requester and litigator operating today. 

The American people were promised a new era of transparency with the Obama administration Unfurtunately, this 
promise has not been kept. To be clear, the Obama administration is less transparent than the Bush administration 
We've filed over 325 FOIA requests with the Obama administration, and we've been furced to file 44 FOIA 
lawsuits to enfurce the law against the Obama administration 

Administratively, Obama administration agencies have built additional hurdles and stonewalled even the lIDSt basic 
FOIA requests. The Bush administration was tough and tricky in this era, but the Obama administration is tougher 
and trickier. And once we're furced to go to federal court, the Obama administration continues to fight us tooth 
and nail. The Obama administration's litigious approach to FOIA is exactly the sa.rrx: as the Bush administration's, 
so one can imagine the difficuhies we encounter litigating these issues in court against the Obama Justice 
Depa.rt:rrxmt. 

You know, we've been investigating the bailouts ofparticu1arly Fannie and Freddie, trying to find out about 
political contributions and other key docmnents. The Obama administration has taken the position that despite the 
mct that Fannie and Freddie putting taxpayers on the hook fur trillions of dollars, incWing over at least, in the 
current nwnber, is $153 billion in fimds expended fur Fannie and Freddie. The Obama administration has taken the 
position that not one of those docmnents is subject to the Freedom oflnfurmation Act. 

These agencies have been taken over completely by the Federal Housing and Finance Administration (sic), and yet 
they say none of these are -- (inaudible) -- agency records, nor will they be subject to disclosure. And we're at the 
appeDate stage on that in terms of litigating that. 

In addition to waDing off the control of our nation's lIDrtgage markets through Fannie and Freddie from public 
accountability, the Obama Treasury Depa.rt:rrxmt has been seemingly incapable of di<lclosing even basic infurmation 
on the various governrrent bailouts. So I can't quite mthom how this administration can laud a new era of 
transparency while over $1 trillion in governrrent spending on the bailouts is shielded from practical oversight and 
scrutiny by the American people. 

You know, this corrnnittee may ~o be interested to learn the truth behind the Obama White House's repeated 
trumpeting of the release of Secret Service White House visitor log'!. In met, the Obama administration is refusing 
to release tens of thousands of visitor log'! and insists, fullowing the Bush administration legal policy developed at 
the end of the administration, that they're not subject to the Freedom oflnfurmation Act. Obviously the Secret 
Service is part of the Department ofHome1and Security. Those records are subject to the Secret Service -- to the 
Freedom oflnfurmation Act. 

In 2009 we were invited to the White House to visit with Norm Eisen, then special counsel to the president fur 
ethics and governrrent there, to discuss Judicial Watch's pursuit of these visitor log'!. And we were told by the 
Obama White House in no uncertain terms that they wanted us to encourage -- publicly encourage and praise 
them fur being transparent, saying it would be good fur them and good fur us. WeD, they refused to release these 
records, as they're supposed to, to us under FOIA, and we were furced to sue in court. 

On top of this, we have the issue of the idea that now White House officials are meeting across the street at the 
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White House Conference Center and in Caribou Coffue with lobbyi<;ts and others to avoid di<lclosing their Il8.IreS 

under this voluntary disclosure policy they've put out related to visitor logs. So rather than visiting people at the 
White House, where the Il8.IreS might be subject to di<lclosure, they're meeting outside the White House. How 
does that comport with the president's connnitrrent to transparency? 

We've been reading about the 1,OOO-plus ''Obarmcare'' waivers that have been issued by the Department of 
Heath and Human Services. We have yet to receive one document in response to our request, and now a lawsuit 
after five months about any of those waivers; not one document. 

And my final example, briefly, is the Department of Homeland Security. We bad asked fur a report about this 
illegal alien who was accused of nmning into and killing a mm. The report was sent, according to reports, to the 
Department of Homeland Security's Secretary Napolitano last year. We asked fur this final report. They said, 
''We'n give it to you" And then they said to us in the court, ''By the way, that report is not final It's draft, and you 
can't have it. We're still working on the final report." WeD, we just got it last month and the report was dated 
November 24th. 

That to me is an indication -- that bam-handedness -- only political appointees could be involved in that sort of 
process. 

So that's the concerns we have --

SEN. LEAHY: You did get the report? 

MR. FITION: We did get a report dated November 24th. But I don't know how a report dated November 24th 
could still be being worked on in January, February and March. 

SEN. LEAHY: I just wanted to make sure--

MR. FITION: That's right. 

SEN. LEAHY: I'm sorry you haven't been able to get the records of the visits during the Bush administration and I 
wasn't able to either. 

Let me go back to Mr. Podesta. You led the eJfurt during the Clinton administration to restore the presumption 
di<lclosure fur goveIlllmnt infurmation. And it has been testified that policy change under the next administration -­
the Bush administration -- you worked to make it more open under the Obama administration. 

Now, these are presidential policies that could change from president to president. Should we enact some 
legislation to codifY the presumption disclosure -- whether it's a Democratic or Republican administration? 

MR. PODESTA: (Offmic.) WeD, I would certainly support that, Mr. Chairman. 

I'm sorry. It was pressed? 

Let me say that I think the structure of the act -- as I noted at the -- in my opening statement -- really does create 
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at some level the presmnption of openness because as the FOIA changed the previous law in 1966, the right of 
every person to every record subject to narrow exemptions and the right to go to court does embed in the FOIA 
itself the right and presmnption of openness and disclosure. 

I think there's one place that is in particular need of legislative attention and that is with respect to classified 
infurrmtion I was able to serve with -- on Senator Moynihan's commission that studied the problem! of 
govenunent secrecy. He suggested and had bipartisan support across the political spectrwn fur a set of 
reconnnendations that included codifYing the presmnption of openness -- particularly in the (b )(1) exemption And 
that has been subject to change back and furth with the passage of admini<;trations. And I think that's something 
that the corrnnittee did consider when that report was issues in the 1990s, but should take a second look at. It's an 
extremely important report on govennnent secrecy. 

SEN. LEAHY: rd like to see a better understanding of what should be classified and what's not. I mean, we had 
some strange new classifications that came up a rew years ago that no one ever heard of I remember being in a 
closed-door, top-secret briefing. And the first two items that came up -- our top secret was either a Time or 
Newsweek cover and the other was something else that has been published in a scholarly paper that had been 
available fur several years. 

There was some discussion ammg those who were there -- and rm trying to be vague about what the subject was 
we were discussing -- that perhaps the briefurs had lost some credibility by beginning with those two. 

It reminds me ofa longtime ago another head of the CIA who had come running to the Hill every time the press 
had disclosed something and say, well, I meant to have told you about this. And I told him that he should take The 
New York Times -- instead of coming up fur a briefing -- mark it top secret and deliver to each of us. We'd get 
the infurrmtion in a IIDre timely mshion; we'd certainly get probably greater detail than he ever gave and we get 
that wonderful crossword puzzle. 

So Ms. Cohen, I know you're here today representing the Sunshine in Government Initiative. I alluded my story to 
this furmer director of CIA about The N ew York Times could be said about many other newspapers just to point 
out that we often times -- including people here in Congress -- rely IIDre on the media to get this infurrmtion than 
we do from whoever's in government. 

The producers recently of an award-wimring documentary fihn about Lym:: Disease entitled, ''Under our Skin" 
reported that the Freedom ofInfurrmtion Act request they submitted to the Centers fur Disease Control back 
during the last admini<;tration in 2007 is still outstanding. And you've testified that during your time as an 
investigatory reporter you never received a timely response to a FOIA request. 

So what does that do if you're trying to report on something -- say a heahh scare where parents may be wanting to 
read about something that may affi:ct their children's heahh or a medication that a cancer patient is taking or 
whatever it might be -- and the press often is the one that blows the whistle first? Well, what happens if you can't 
get timely FOIA? 

MS. COHEN: Well, there's two issues that happen, I think. 

The first one is in a case ofa public event -- a health scare. Frankly, you get the documents unofficially. You're 
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going to find a way to report that story. And if you have to get them through leaks or through some other way, 
you'n get them that way. 

I think the IIXlre frightening thing are the stories that are never done that the public never hears about. There's a 
reporter in Texas who after a year and a half gave up on doing a story on private security contractors at -- who 
are protecting federal courthouses, because he was convinced he was never going to get those records. And he's 
never done that story. 

And the problem is that IIXlst reporters go in with questions, not answers. And if you can't even ask the question, 
you can never even find out whether or not you're going to get the answer. So I think that's the IIXlre frightening 
part of that. 

SEN. LEAHY: After you've been stonewalled long enough, your editor is going to say, hey, we're paying you rm 
going to put on something else. 

MS. COHEN: Wen, yeah. YOUIIXlve on I mean, there are plenty of stories to be done and ifit's futile and you're 
not sure of what the answers going to be, it may be that there's no problem and so you IIXlve on 

SEN. LEAHY: My time is used up. 

Senator Grassley. 

SEN. GRASSLEY: Thank: you 

Mr. Fitton, AP published yesterday: ''Promises, promises: Little transparency progress" -- concluding that in year 
two, the administration's perJDrmance was mixed and that it was struggling to fuIIill the president's promises on 
transparency. 

First question: Very briefly, based on your first-hand experience, do you agree with the evaluation of the Obama's 
administration perJDrmance in the first year, which was rated at C or lower? 

MR. FITTON: Yes. I would give it a fitiIing grade. 

SEN. GRASSLEY: Two: How would you grade the Obama administration's perJDrmance during the second year? 

MR. FITTON: It's still fuiling. 

To be specific, when -- we appreciate the increase availability of government material on the Internet. But about 
matters of public interest and controversy, in tenns of getting infunnation from the administration it is as difficuh if 
not IIXlre difficuh than ever. 

SEN. GRASSLEY: You're fumiIiar with Ted Bridis's investigative report fur AP? According to the report, 2009 
and '10, the Homeland Security diverted requests fur records to senior political advisers who often delayed the 
release of records they considered politically sensitive. The political vetting often delayed the release of infurmation 
fur weeks beyond the usual wait. According to AP report, Homeland Security rescinded the rule prior to political-
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- fur prior political approval 

In July of last year -- supposedly under new policy -- records are now submitted to the secretary's political 
advisers tlrree days befure they're made public, but can't be released without their approval 

Based on your experience, are President Obama's appointees still engaging in politicized approach to handling 
requests fur infurmation under FOIA and to litigating lawsuits under the act? 

MR. PIlTON : Yes. And certainly our experience with the Department ofHome1and Security is consistent with 
that -- specifically the release of this final report that became a draft report -- that became a report in progress, 
that became a report that was finished in November of201 O. 

SEN. GRASSLEY: Expand a little bit on your experiences: How widespread is the politicized approach to 
requests fur infurmation under FOIA? 

MR. FIlTON: WeD, you see indications of the politicization when the response makes no sense to you Where, as 
I say, with the DRS memo where you're told that we're not even going to look fur docmmnts, because nothing 
you're asking fur would be subject to disclosure so we're not going to bother looking -- or with the -- frankly, the 
request more recently of the FBI files. 

We asked fur the documents related to Ted Kennedy's FBI file. And we had to push and push and push. And the 
FBI pushed back on us. And it turned out to be they did not want to release embarrassing infurmation They 
ended up releasing it to us in the end, but it came after five months of fighting. 

And that to me was an example of the administration, fur political reasons, withholding embarrassing infurmation 
about -- weD, a recently deceased friendly voice. 

SEN. GRASSLEY: Your organization has extensive experience with tactics employed in this administration by 
political employees in handling FOIA. 

Based on what you've seen, do you believe an independent investigation is warranted? 

MR. FIlTON:Yes. 

SEN. GRASSLEY: And if so, do you have any suggestions or recommendations on who should investigate 
politicized compliance with Freedom ofInfurmation requests and what parameters of that investigation might meet? 

MR. FIlTON: WeD, if you think: the law is important, you would have an independent counsel of some type 
appointed by the agency or by the Justice Department. If you think: the law is a law to be trifled with, that it's a big 
joke -- which I think: it's -- that's how it's been treated administration to administration The politicization ofFOIA 
did not begin with the Obama administration, but we were told it would end and it has not. 

SEN. GRASSLEY: My last question: As I noted befure, your organization has significant experience. What is your 
evaluation of the Office ofGoveI'Ilmml: Infurmation Services? What is the general impression of the requester 
commmity about the Office ofGoveI'Ilmml: Infurmation Services? 
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MR FITfON: That agency may be helpful to non-expert requesters -- in t:erms of helping them with the FOIA 
process. We've used it a little bit to try to speed along certain requests and we'ye been successful in that regard. 

But when you're in a fight with or a di<;pute with an agency, the -- you're not going to rely on that, because you can 
go to court and get what you need or have a fina1ity as to what the di<;pute is. You're not going to get finality 
through this agency. 

SEN. GRASSLEY: My last question is whether or not you've got any suggestion fur improving the Office of 
GoveIlllrent Infurmation Services? 

MR FITfON: WeD, I wouldn't fucus on another layer of bureaucracy. Personally, I would fucus on the agencies 
and the political appointees and making sure that there's a commitment to FOIA. 

Our govermml1t, fur better or fur worse -- depending on your point of view -- is doing rmre than ever and FOIA 
bas not caught up with it. 

SEN. GRASSLEY: Thank you so rrruch fur this sort of hearing, but it's something that you just kind of got to keep 
your bands on all the tirm if we're ever going to beat down these roadblocks. 

SEN. LEAHY: Been doing it fur over 30 years. 

SEN. GRASSLEY: I know it. 

SEN. LEAHY:We'ncontinue. 

SEN. GRASSLEY: All the rmre reason we ought to -- got to work hard. 

SEN. LEAHY: Thank you 

Senator Whitehouse, then Senator Franken. 

SEN. WIllTEHOUSE: Were the panelists here when I asked my questions to the first panel? 

Could I ask each of you to respond -- the topic being here we are in the Goog1e age, the digital age, what are the 
best steps that we can do to make the FOIA banks rmre accessible to the public -- even people who just don't 
want to fullow FOIA themselves, but just want to use it fur research purposes? 

MR PODESTA: Yeah, Senator. My prepared testimony and my statement this rmming go into that in some 
detail. I think there are two large baskets that you should be looking at. One is infurmation that ought to be 
automatically disclosed without resort to FO IA requests. 

The Obama administration's taken some criticism from Mr. Fitton I don't think there's any question that it has gone 
further than any administration in history in putting out infurmation -- particularly on recovery.goy, data. goy -- and 
putting up useful infurmation to the public. 
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The Freedom oflnfurmation Act always had a provision that required certain infurmation to be published as a pro 
furma matter. That's been expanded to include responses to FOIA requests in which people have -- the agency 
thought that it would be requested again, so they put it out there. But that could be taken nruch, nruch further. So 
that's one area to explicit and my written testimony goes into some areas where that might be particularly useful. 

A second area i<I that FOIA requests themselves -- as a resuh of the legic;1ation that was passed by the chairman 
and Senator Cornyn -- there i<I now a requirement that FOIA requests get a docket number. The requests 
themselves can be published into a connmn database. The responses can be put into a connmn database. That 
would actually be a IlXJre productive way to process requests, would save IlXJney in the kmg nm and provide 
va1uable infurmation to the public. 

SEN. WHITEHOUSE: Do you think the notion ofa search engine on FOIA.gov that can go through the websites 
of diffi:rent departments is adequate? 

MR PODESTA: Sure. I mean, you know, no. I think what FOIA.gov does is to try to have a connmn set of 
policies, give people some better tool<! to basically interact with federal agencies on FOIA. But I think it could 
definitely go further. 

And again, I think recovery.gov's a good example in which if you put the data out there, people in the private 
sector will think of an kinds of interesting ways to utilize that data to create IlXJre productivity that can come from 
having open access to government infurmation 

SEN. WHITEHOUSE: Ms. Cohen? 

MS. COHEN: Yeah. There are a couple of things. I think your thoughts on the searchable FOIA is excellent. I just 
want to mention that when we've been talking about these frequently requested records or connmn records, it is 
so inconsi<ltent whether or not those are ever posted. 

I know that virtually every FOIA request I've ever made has never shown up on a government website -- except 
when it was posted befure it was responded to -- (laughter) -- to me. So those sites have a long way to go, but 
you do need a search engine to go through them I think there rrrust be several hundred of those sites out there. 

And the second thing that I've mentioned in my written testimony is to also spend some time administratively 
looking at the systems that are used to generate records. One of the real problems here is that the record system 
still can't be searched in a way that then produces an efficient system So that the review of how agencies are 
redoing their record systems I think might be -- might include a review of whether or not there's transparency in 
those records systems buih in, because there really isn't right now. 

SEN. WHITEHOUSE: Mr. Fitton? 

MR FITTON: Yes, Senator. Some fulks speciali7e in ''FOIA-ing'' FOIAs. Give me the lists ofall the FOIAs and 
look fur the juicy ones and then pursue those a little bit IlXJre. 

Obviously, putting out large slots ofinfurmation is good and there has been progress in that regard. There has been 
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som: concern that a lot of the infurmation -- it was reported last week -- was not correctly inputted. I think: that's 
more a matter of competency than anything else. 

But as I noted, in matters of public controversy, the Internet is not going to be where you find that For instance, 
the decision whether or not to put Fannie or Freddie into conservatorship -- you know, we're litigating that right 
now. Decisions about the bailout, about why these decisions were made -- the deliberative process type of 
decisions -- that's where you get into disputes and obviously, that's where the interest is in tenm of the public of 
matters of controversy where there may be concerns about the decision making and what went into it. And that is 
unlik:ely to get onto the Internet And if it does get onto the Internet, right now you're going to have difficuhy finding 
it. 

SEN. WHITEHOUSE: But it would at least enable the resources that these agencies have -- limited resources -­
to respond to FOIA requests to be dedicated to those more challenging ones that you're suggesting, rather than 
chasing around the day-to-day stufl; because that could be more readily access automatically. And so it would be 
even helpful in that sense fur the more challenging requests, no? 

MR. FIlTON: That's right. For instance, the BP oil spill-- many thousands ofdocum:nts have been posted by 
the administration, appropriately so, on the Internet and we've got them separately. But we're happy to -- ifwe 
think: they're there and we're confident that we're all there, that it would be responsive to a particular request, you 
know -- believe it or not, we don't want to sue ifwe can avoid it and we'd be happy to avoid litigation 

SEN. LEAHY: Thank you 

And I'm going to turn the gavel over to Senator Franken, who's been extraordinarily patient, but has also been 
very valuable to this committee--

SENATOR AL FRANKEN (D-MN): Thank you 

I cam: from Indian Affitirs and I just stepped out from som: people from Minneapolis City Council to talk to 
them 

So I think: -- picking up -- or I may not even be picking up, I may be just be repeating what Senator Whitehouse 
just said, so I kind of want to -- don't want to do that But the gist of what I think: I heard -- because I heard the 
last 15 seconds of Mr. Fitton's answer is that if you put online pretty rrruch everything that -- I think: the premise is 
your going to put -- Mr. Fitton's premise might have been-- I'm extrapolating from the last 15 seconds of your 
answer -- is that if the administration just puts everything online, that they're still not going to put online som: of the 
most controversial stufl; which is the kind of stuff that you want. Is that right? 

MR. FITION: I would suspect that (Chuckles.) 

SEN. FRANKEN: So you would suspect that and probably have a reason to, right? 

MR. FITION: WeD, there are privileges that -- you know, there are lawful reasons fur withholding infurmation 
and often discretionary. 
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SEN. FRANKEN: Sure. 

MR. PIlTON: Some administrations will be more willing to release infurmation than others and that's where the 
litigation comes in. 

SEN. FRANKEN: Right. But by putting on so nruch -- and like in the BP thing they put on stuff that was very 
helpful, right? 

MR. FI1TON:Mm-hnnn. (In agreement.) 

SEN. FRANKEN: They put up a whole BP site, basically, about the spill, right? 

MR. FI1TON: Right. 

SEN. FRANKEN: OK. So that's very-- very helpful And then it sort of makes it more efficient to go after the 
more controversial stuff if everything has been online. 

That's what you've been suggesting, Mr. Podesta, right? 

MR. PODESTA: That's right, Senator. 

And you know, I think that -- as I said -- the kinds of things the government might think of as being useful in that 
data are probably small in comparison to what citizens could think of to make that data useful once it's up and 
once it's online. And that's where I think you can get -- you know, it's the power ofGoogle. Anofa sudden, 
you've got --

SEN. FRANKEN: Sounds like a Wiki-- Wikipedia kind of thing where citizens can go in and say, why don't you 
put t:Im up and why don't you put that up? Is that what you're talking about? 

MR. PODESTA: I think it's both what they put up, but also what you do to make that infurmation useful 

I'n give you a specific example: We just did a return on investment of every school district in the country based on 
money that went into that di<;trict -- state and local and rederal and return -- and what the return was on the 
outside. 

Now, the Department of Education could have done that, but they didn't do it. 

SEN. FRANKEN: You had --

MR. PODESTA: We fuund a way to do that. And I think once that data is available in good data sets, then 
people will think of imaginative ways that'n improve the productivity of govermoollt and you know, lead to 
breaktlrroughs in an kinds of ways. 

SEN. FRANKEN: Let me ask you about t:Im, because you've been in an administration as chief of staff And 
during the Clinton administration, I'm sure there was -- I mean, I know there is a tremendous nmnber ofFOIA 
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requests. And I'm, you know, very -- yoU know, I want FOIA to work and I want people to be able to get the -­
I think the journalists should be able to get the stuff they want. 

Did you ever get the reeling that there were just fishing expeditions during the Clinton administration? 

MR PODESTA: Of course. (Chuckles. 

) 

SEN. FRANKEN: OK. And I--

MR PODESTA: And by the way, there's nothing wrong with that. Sometimes you catch fish. 

SEN. FRANKEN: OK. Let me ask you about that, though: When there -- as I recaD, during that period there 
seemed to be an incredible amount: of requests coming from the House of Representatives, from other places, that 
-- did that in a sense make it harder to comply with actual, real-- not only legitimate, but more serious kind of -­
Ms. Cohen, why don't you answer this. Does that tend to make it harder fur people like you who are really going 
after something? 

MS. COHEN: Wen, I think a lot of people would say that we go on fishing expeditions as weD. 

The nature of those kinds of requests -- whether they come from other branches of governments or from 
journalists -- is that they're very broad and they don't know exactly what they're looking fur. And I think that's an 
important thing fur both journalists and other people to be able to do. 

It certainly is -- it does make it more difficuh on the people who are trying to answer it, but I think those are also 
the kinds of requests that a place like Judicial Watch is doing. 

I do think that if you put more of the things that you've already fuund on the Internet, it does free up some 
resources to get to those ones. 

SEN. FRANKEN: OK, which is where we -- where Senator Whitehouse ended and where I started. 

Let me take a couple moments -- Mr. Fitton, thank you fur complinenting both the ranking member and the 
chairman on their -- on whistleblowers. I think it's very irrtJortant to protect whistleblowers. 

I was a little confused about the visitor logs at the White House and the Caribou Coffue thing. If they're not 
allowing the visiting logs, why would they go to Caribou Coffue? 

MR FITTON: Wen, they are disclosing them vohmtarily after, I think, August of2009 -- anything befure that you 
have to ask them specifically and they may withhold infurmation. 

The question is --

SEN. FRANKEN: Wait a minute. I'm sorry. I was very confused about that. 
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MR FITfON: They're vohmtarily disclosing the visitor klgs, but they're saying it's a vohmtary discklsure; it's not 
pursuant to the Freedom ofInfurmation Act. 

SEN. FRANKEN: Ob, OK. 

MR FITfON: DIning the Bush administration, we had asked fur the visitor klgs related to Jack Abramoff And 
we were given those logs pursuant to litigation, but also pursuant to the Freedom ofInfurmation Act. Then the left 
started asking the Bush administration fur lIDre interesting visitors, from their perspective. And the Bush 
administration said, enough of this. We're going to say that these logs are not subject to Freedom ofInfurmation 
And the Obama administration contimres with that legal position 

The vohmtary discklsure is subject to caveats. They can release, withhold names based on -- fur political reasons -
- that they're rreeting with appointees or sorreone they don't want to be discklsed within a certain atmunt oftirre. 
So they know they're vohmtarily discklsing this infurmation and then they're going across the street -- or so it's 
been reported in The N ew York Times -- at Caribou Cofree to avoid this vohmtary discklsure. 

So they're saying they're not subject to disclosure under the law. The discklsure is vohmtary. And that can be 
reversed either by this president or any subsequent president. So we're kind of -- we're still in the position of trying 
to get infurmation pursuant to the law and we're unable to do it. 

MR PODESTA: Senator, I think this is one of those examples ofno good deed going unpunished. I think the 
administration has put lIDre infurmation about who goes in and out of the West Wing of the White House than, 
obviously, any administration in the past -- including the one in which I served. 

And I think that, you know, so Mr. Fitton's complaint is -- and that's regularly updated. They did the process, I 
don't know, fur the first six lIDnths of August of2009. But now they regularly and routinely update who goes in 
and out of the White House. I think it will be difficult -- ahhough certainly not impossible -- to reverse that decision 
and decide that -- particularly in this administration, but in subsequent administration's as wen -- to decide that the 
public doesn't have a right to know who's walking in and out of the West Wing of the White House. 

MR FITfON: WeD, just briefly: You know, the Office of Administration vohmtarily complied with FOIA, even 
though it did not think it was subject to Freedom ofInfurmation And that changed under the Bush administration 
We used to get material from the OA, from the Clinton and during parts of the Bush administration And then they 
shut it off and it hasn't been turned on again. 

I spend a lot of -- it can stop. 

MR PODESTA: (Chuckles.) Mr. Fitton and I could go on about this. I spent many quality hours befure Judge 
Lamberth explaining what our infurmation practices were in the Clinton White House with Mr. Fitton's 
predecessor at Judicial Watch. 

But I think that -- and he did note that I think good public practice corres into play and presidents change and they 
can lIDve in the wrong direction But rm not sure exactly what Mr. Fitton's recommendation is fur resolving this 
particular controversy. 
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SEN. FRANKEN: Wen, I want to thank you both. And you can continue --

MR PODESTA: Carry cameras in Caribou Coffue. 

SEN. FRANKEN: I think you can continue the conversation in Caribou Coffue. (Laughter.) 

Thank you an fur coming today. The record will be held open fur a week fur additional material and questions. 
Thi<l hearing is adjomned. (Sounds gavel) 
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